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1 PROCEEDI NGS rage
2 HEARI NG OFFI CER: Let's go on the record
3 please. Good morning. This is the time and place and
4 notice for a hearing in the application of Dom nion Energy
5 Uah to provide inmpacts of the new federal tax |egislation
6 titled: An act to provide for reconciliation pursuant to
7 titles 2 and 5 of the budget for fiscal year 2018. This is
8 Commi ssi on Docket 17-057-26.
9 My name is Mke Hammer. |'mthe Conmission's
10 designated presiding officer for the hearing.
11 Let's go ahead and take appearances pl ease.
12 MS. SPENCER. Arm nda Spencer, attorney for
13 Dom nion Energy U ah.
14 MR, MENDENHALL: Kelly Mendenhal |, director of
15 regulatory and pricing for Dom nion Energy Utah.
16 MR JETTER |'mJustin Jetter with the Uah
17 Attorney General's office. |'mhere today representing the
18 Uah Division of Public Uilities. Wth nme at counsel
19 table is Division's witness Jeff Ei nfeld.
20 MR. MOORE: Robert Moore, Attorney Ceneral's
21 office representing the Ofice of Consunmer Service. Wth
22 me is Cheryl Murray with the Ofice.
23 HEARI NG OFFI CER. Thank you. |Is there anything
24 we need to address before we begin? Al right.
25 Ms. Spencer.
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MS. SPENCER  Thank you. Today in accordance

with Section 16 of the file settlenent stipulation we have
provi ded -- DEU has provided Kelly Mendenhall as a w tness
to discuss the settlenment terns and conditions. Kelly
Mendenhal | is the director of regulatory and pricing.

HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Mendenhal |, do you swear
to tell the truth?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

THE WTNESS: | just want to give a little bit
of procedural background. On Decenber 22, 2017 the tax
cuts and job act was signed into law, and as a result of
that | aw the Conm ssion asked Dom nion Energy in 2018 to
report the inpacts that this tax | aw woul d have on
cust omers.

On May 16, 2018, the Division, the Ofice of
Consuner Service, and UAE filed a settlenent stipulation in
t hat proceeding. And as part of that stipulation the
Company agreed they woul d report the inpact of excess
deferred incone taxes on custonmers by the first quarter of
2019.

So on March 27, 2019 Dom ni on Energy conpl eted
its calculation and provided that information. There are
two buckets related to this tax deferred i ncone taxes. You

have plant rel ated excess deferred inconme taxes, which
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1 anounted to about $230 nillion in Uah. And that is

2 anortized using the average rate assunption nethod, which

3 is what the IRS requires for it to be conpliant. And so

4 the Conpany began anortizing that January 1, 2018.

5 The second bucket of excess deferred incone

6 taxes is other nonplant related. There is no defined

7 anortization period for that bucket of costs. That amounts
8 to about $14.5 nillion. The Conmpany has not begun

9 anortizing that yet, and I will speak a little bit to the
10 treatnent of that going forward

11 But if | can have you turn to page 3 of the

12 settlement stipulation I'Il just highlight a few of the

13 ternms of the settlenent stipulation. If you go to

14 paragraph 12. It says, the parties agree begi nning June 1,
15 2019, the inpacts related to this 2018 EDI T anorti zation

16 wll be anortized over a one year period as Tax Reform

17 Surcredit 3. And that anount that will be anortized is

18 about $4.9 nmillion. That is shown on -- if you turn to

19 settlenment attachment 1, page 2, line 3, colum D, and that
20 amount $4,958,251. That's the anmount that will be
21 anortized over the one year period. So that wll take care
22 of the anortization for 2018.
23 And then as far as the anortization going
24 forward, if you go to nunber 14, provision 14, page 4 of
25 the settlenment stipulation. It says, the partis also agree
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that the anortization for the unprotected portion of the

plant-related EDI T remai ning after the 2018 EDI T
anortization will be addressed in the next general rate
case.

So basically the parties have agreed that going
forward we'll determ ne how the rest of the excess deferred
Incone tax gets treated. And then in provision 13, that
ot her bucket, the $4.5 m|lion bucket | was tal king about,
the parties agree that the anortization period for that
amount of noney will be determned in the general rate case
as well.

So the Company believes that the stipulation is
just and reasonable and result and we ask, along with the
other parties, the Conm ssion to issue an order approving
the settlement stipulation, adopting its terms and
conditions. That concludes ny sunmary.

HEARI NG OFFI CER M. Jetter, any questions?

MR. JETTER. No questions. Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. More?

MR- MOORE: No questions. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ms. Spencer, do you have any
ot her wi tnesses?

MS. SPENCER No, we don't.

HEARI NG OFFI CER M. Jetter.

MR. JETTER  Thank you. The Division would
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Page /
like to call and have sworn in Jeff Einfeld.

HEARI NG OFFICER: M. Einfeld, do you swear to
tell the truth?
THE W TNESS:  Yes.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR JETTER

Q M. Einfeld, would you please state your nane
and occupation for the record?

A My nane is Jeffery S. Einfeld. I'ma utility
anal yst for the Division of Public UWilities. M officeis
it located here at 160 East 300 South, Fourth Fl oor.

Q Thank you. Have you had the opportunity to
review the filings made in this docket up until this point
as well as the settlenment stipulation filed by the parties?

A Yes, | have.

Q Initially, do you believe that approval of the
settlement stipulation that is before the Comm ssion at the
hearing today woul d be just and reasonable and in the
public interest?

A Yes, | do.

Q Do you have a brief summary of the Division's
position on this?

A Yes, if | may.

Q Pl ease, go ahead.

A On March 27, 2019, Dominion filed its report
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with the Comm ssion detailing its estimates and i npacts of

t he nost recent federal tax |aw change on excess deferred
incone taxes in relation to its rate base cal culation and
revenue requiremnent.

The Division has had an opportunity to review
this report and the associated exhibits. The Division also
participated in discussions and negotiations w th Dom nion
Energy and the other interested parties in this docket
| eading to the settlenment stipulation before the Conm ssion
t oday.

The Division is satisfied the stipulation
allows DEU to conply with IRS normalization rules for EDIT
related to protected property and will allow DEU to
anortize the unprotected portion of EDIT in a just and
reasonabl e manner resulting in the associated val ue being
returned to rate payers.

The Division believes the subject excess
deferred incone tax settlenent stipulation before the
Conmmi ssion today is just and reasonable and result and in
the public interest. This concludes ny conments.

Q Thank you

MR, JETTER | have no further questions for
M. Einfeld. He's available for cross exam nation and
questions fromthe Conm ssion

HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ms. Spencer?
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1 MS. SPENCER No questions. Thank you. rage
2 HEARI NG OFFI CER° M. MNbore?

3 MR, MOORE: No questions. Thank you.

4 HEARI NG OFFICER. M. Einfeld, | just have one.
5 The DEU settlenment attachment 1 on page 5, the DEU has

6 estimated the percentage change the stipulation will have
7 onits typical GS custoners. It appeared to ne as though
8 that percentage change was based on rates that were

9 effective Decenber 2018, not the rates that are effective
10 today; is that right?

11 THE WTNESS: | don't have the exhibit in front
12 of ne.

13 HEARI NG OFFI CER: Do you need to take a m nute?
14 THE WTNESS: Gkay. Could you please --

15 HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Rephrase my question?

16 THE WTNESS: O just restate it.

17 HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Sure. On page 5 of

18 attachnment 1, the DEU provided an estimate of the

19 percentage change the typical GS custoner will see as a
20 result of the stipulation in their annual bill. The dollar
21 anount is the sane no natter what the rates are, but the
22 percentage change is different depending on what the rates
23 are now, what they were changed to in April versus what
24 they were in Decenber. |t appeared to us as though the
25 rate change was based on the rates that were effective in
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Decenber, not the rates that are effective now Is that

right?

THE WTNESS: | would have to refer to Dom nion
Energy on answering that question.

HEARI NG OFFICER  |'mnot sure it's terribly
materi al because the dollars are the same. It's just a
percentage inmpact on custonmer. W' Il nove on

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER. M. Moore?

MR MOORE: The Ofice calls Cheryl Murray and
ask that she be sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ms. Murray, do you swear to
tell the truth.

THE W TNESS: Yes.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR MOORE:

Q Coul d you pl ease state your nanme and your
enpl oyer ?

A My name is Cheryl Murray. |'ma utility

analyst with the Ofice of Consuner Services.
Q Have you read the filings in this case and the
settlement stipulation that is the subject of this hearing?
A Yes.
Q Did you participate in the settlenent

di scussions that have led to the stipulation that is before
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1 the Conm ssion today? rage L
2 A Yes, | participated on behalf of the Ofice.

3 Q Are you prepared to testify in support of the
4 stipulation?

) A Yes.

6 Q Pl ease proceed

7 A The O fice participated in discussions and

8 negotiations with the other parties that led to the

9 stipulation.

10 There are specific conditions on the

11 stipulation that the Ofice believes are inportant to the
12 public interest.

13 Custoners receive the benefit on the 2018

14 anortization of plant-related excess deferred incone taxes,
15 or EDIT, pronptly through a surcredit on their bills.

16 Al so, the appropriate treatnment of the

17 nonplant-related EDIT and the remai ni ng nonpr ot ect ed

18 plant-related EDIT will be addressed in the next rate case
19 where the Ofice and other parties will be able to fully
20 -evaluate all aspects of DEU s revenue requirenents.
21 By noving this determnation to the rate case,
22 parties wll be able to evaluate various options for the
23 best use of the funds, such as the appropriate tine frane
24 over which to return the EDIT to custoners as quickly as
25 possible without negatively inpacting DEU s financi al
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1 position or credit rating, or perhaps offsetting a

2 reqgulatory asset owed from custoners.

3 Thus, the Ofice believes that the stipulation
4 is just and reasonable and result and is in the public

5 interest. And we recommend that the Conm ssion approve it.
6 Q Does this conclude your testinony?

7 A Yes.

8 MR MOORE: Ms. Murray is available for cross
9 and questions fromthe presiding officer.

10 HEARI NG OFFI CER. Thank you. Ms. Spencer?

11 MS. SPENCER  No questions. Thank you.

12 HEARI NG OFFI CER M. Jetter?

13 MR. JETTER | have no questions. Thank you.
14 HEARI NG OFFI CER:  All right. 1Is there anything
15 else before we adjourn? Al right. Have a good day

16 everybody.

17 (The hearing concluded at 10:15 a.m)

18

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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under ny direction and supervision:

That the foregoing 12 pages contain a true and correct
transcription of ny shorthand notes so taken.
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Utah this 20th day of My, 20109.
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               1                      P R O C E E D I N G S



               2              HEARING OFFICER:  Let's go on the record



               3  please.  Good morning.  This is the time and place and



               4  notice for a hearing in the application of Dominion Energy



               5  Utah to provide impacts of the new federal tax legislation



               6  titled: An act to provide for reconciliation pursuant to



               7  titles 2 and 5 of the budget for fiscal year 2018.  This is



               8  Commission Docket 17-057-26.



               9              My name is Mike Hammer.  I'm the Commission's



              10  designated presiding officer for the hearing.



              11              Let's go ahead and take appearances please.



              12              MS. SPENCER:  Arminda Spencer, attorney for



              13  Dominion Energy Utah.



              14              MR. MENDENHALL:  Kelly Mendenhall, director of



              15  regulatory and pricing for Dominion Energy Utah.



              16              MR. JETTER:  I'm Justin Jetter with the Utah



              17  Attorney General's office.  I'm here today representing the



              18  Utah Division of Public Utilities.  With me at counsel



              19  table is Division's witness Jeff Einfeld.



              20              MR. MOORE:  Robert Moore, Attorney General's



              21  office representing the Office of Consumer Service.  With



              22  me is Cheryl Murray with the Office.



              23              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Is there anything



              24  we need to address before we begin?  All right.



              25  Ms. Spencer.
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               1              MS. SPENCER:  Thank you.  Today in accordance



               2  with Section 16 of the file settlement stipulation we have



               3  provided -- DEU has provided Kelly Mendenhall as a witness



               4  to discuss the settlement terms and conditions.  Kelly



               5  Mendenhall is the director of regulatory and pricing.



               6              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Mendenhall, do you swear



               7  to tell the truth?



               8              THE WITNESS:  Yes.



               9              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



              10              THE WITNESS:  I just want to give a little bit



              11  of procedural background.  On December 22, 2017 the tax



              12  cuts and job act was signed into law, and as a result of



              13  that law the Commission asked Dominion Energy in 2018 to



              14  report the impacts that this tax law would have on



              15  customers.



              16              On May 16, 2018, the Division, the Office of



              17  Consumer Service, and UAE filed a settlement stipulation in



              18  that proceeding.  And as part of that stipulation the



              19  Company agreed they would report the impact of excess



              20  deferred income taxes on customers by the first quarter of



              21  2019.



              22              So on March 27, 2019 Dominion Energy completed



              23  its calculation and provided that information.  There are



              24  two buckets related to this tax deferred income taxes.  You



              25  have plant related excess deferred income taxes, which
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               1  amounted to about $230 million in Utah.  And that is



               2  amortized using the average rate assumption method, which



               3  is what the IRS requires for it to be compliant.  And so



               4  the Company began amortizing that January 1, 2018.



               5              The second bucket of excess deferred income



               6  taxes is other nonplant related.  There is no defined



               7  amortization period for that bucket of costs.  That amounts



               8  to about $14.5 million.  The Company has not begun



               9  amortizing that yet, and I will speak a little bit to the



              10  treatment of that going forward.



              11              But if I can have you turn to page 3 of the



              12  settlement stipulation I'll just highlight a few of the



              13  terms of the settlement stipulation.  If you go to



              14  paragraph 12.  It says, the parties agree beginning June 1,



              15  2019, the impacts related to this 2018 EDIT amortization



              16  will be amortized over a one year period as Tax Reform



              17  Surcredit 3.  And that amount that will be amortized is



              18  about $4.9 million.  That is shown on -- if you turn to



              19  settlement attachment 1, page 2, line 3, column D, and that



              20  amount $4,958,251.  That's the amount that will be



              21  amortized over the one year period.  So that will take care



              22  of the amortization for 2018.



              23              And then as far as the amortization going



              24  forward, if you go to number 14, provision 14, page 4 of



              25  the settlement stipulation.  It says, the partis also agree
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               1  that the amortization for the unprotected portion of the



               2  plant-related EDIT remaining after the 2018 EDIT



               3  amortization will be addressed in the next general rate



               4  case.



               5              So basically the parties have agreed that going



               6  forward we'll determine how the rest of the excess deferred



               7  income tax gets treated.  And then in provision 13, that



               8  other bucket, the $4.5 million bucket I was talking about,



               9  the parties agree that the amortization period for that



              10  amount of money will be determined in the general rate case



              11  as well.



              12              So the Company believes that the stipulation is



              13  just and reasonable and result and we ask, along with the



              14  other parties, the Commission to issue an order approving



              15  the settlement stipulation, adopting its terms and



              16  conditions.  That concludes my summary.



              17              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Jetter, any questions?



              18              MR. JETTER:  No questions.  Thank you.



              19              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?



              20              MR. MOORE:  No questions.  Thank you.



              21              HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Spencer, do you have any



              22  other witnesses?



              23              MS. SPENCER:  No, we don't.



              24              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Jetter.



              25              MR. JETTER:  Thank you.  The Division would
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               1  like to call and have sworn in Jeff Einfeld.



               2              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Einfeld, do you swear to



               3  tell the truth?



               4              THE WITNESS:  Yes.



               5                       DIRECT EXAMINATION



               6  BY MR. JETTER:



               7        Q.    Mr. Einfeld, would you please state your name



               8  and occupation for the record?



               9        A.    My name is Jeffery S. Einfeld.  I'm a utility



              10  analyst for the Division of Public Utilities.  My office is



              11  it located here at 160 East 300 South, Fourth Floor.



              12        Q.    Thank you.  Have you had the opportunity to



              13  review the filings made in this docket up until this point



              14  as well as the settlement stipulation filed by the parties?



              15        A.    Yes, I have.



              16        Q.    Initially, do you believe that approval of the



              17  settlement stipulation that is before the Commission at the



              18  hearing today would be just and reasonable and in the



              19  public interest?



              20        A.    Yes, I do.



              21        Q.    Do you have a brief summary of the Division's



              22  position on this?



              23        A.    Yes, if I may.



              24        Q.    Please, go ahead.



              25        A.    On March 27, 2019, Dominion filed its report
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               1  with the Commission detailing its estimates and impacts of



               2  the most recent federal tax law change on excess deferred



               3  income taxes in relation to its rate base calculation and



               4  revenue requirement.



               5              The Division has had an opportunity to review



               6  this report and the associated exhibits.  The Division also



               7  participated in discussions and negotiations with Dominion



               8  Energy and the other interested parties in this docket



               9  leading to the settlement stipulation before the Commission



              10  today.



              11              The Division is satisfied the stipulation



              12  allows DEU to comply with IRS normalization rules for EDIT



              13  related to protected property and will allow DEU to



              14  amortize the unprotected portion of EDIT in a just and



              15  reasonable manner resulting in the associated value being



              16  returned to rate payers.



              17              The Division believes the subject excess



              18  deferred income tax settlement stipulation before the



              19  Commission today is just and reasonable and result and in



              20  the public interest.  This concludes my comments.



              21        Q.    Thank you.



              22              MR. JETTER:  I have no further questions for



              23  Mr. Einfeld.  He's available for cross examination and



              24  questions from the Commission.



              25              HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Spencer?
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               1              MS. SPENCER:  No questions.  Thank you.



               2              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?



               3              MR. MOORE:  No questions.  Thank you.



               4              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Einfeld, I just have one.



               5  The DEU settlement attachment 1 on page 5, the DEU has



               6  estimated the percentage change the stipulation will have



               7  on its typical GS customers.  It appeared to me as though



               8  that percentage change was based on rates that were



               9  effective December 2018, not the rates that are effective



              10  today; is that right?



              11              THE WITNESS:  I don't have the exhibit in front



              12  of me.



              13              HEARING OFFICER:  Do you need to take a minute?



              14              THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Could you please --



              15              HEARING OFFICER:  Rephrase my question?



              16              THE WITNESS:  Or just restate it.



              17              HEARING OFFICER:  Sure.  On page 5 of



              18  attachment 1, the DEU provided an estimate of the



              19  percentage change the typical GS customer will see as a



              20  result of the stipulation in their annual bill.  The dollar



              21  amount is the same no matter what the rates are, but the



              22  percentage change is different depending on what the rates



              23  are now, what they were changed to in April versus what



              24  they were in December.  It appeared to us as though the



              25  rate change was based on the rates that were effective in
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               1  December, not the rates that are effective now.  Is that



               2  right?



               3              THE WITNESS:  I would have to refer to Dominion



               4  Energy on answering that question.



               5              HEARING OFFICER:  I'm not sure it's terribly



               6  material because the dollars are the same.  It's just a



               7  percentage impact on customer.  We'll move on.



               8              THE WITNESS:  Okay.



               9              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Moore?



              10              MR. MOORE:  The Office calls Cheryl Murray and



              11  ask that she be sworn.



              12              HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Murray, do you swear to



              13  tell the truth.



              14              THE WITNESS:  Yes.



              15                       DIRECT EXAMINATION



              16  BY MR. MOORE:



              17        Q.    Could you please state your name and your



              18  employer?



              19        A.    My name is Cheryl Murray.  I'm a utility



              20  analyst with the Office of Consumer Services.



              21        Q.    Have you read the filings in this case and the



              22  settlement stipulation that is the subject of this hearing?



              23        A.    Yes.



              24        Q.    Did you participate in the settlement



              25  discussions that have led to the stipulation that is before
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               1  the Commission today?



               2        A.    Yes, I participated on behalf of the Office.



               3        Q.    Are you prepared to testify in support of the



               4  stipulation?



               5        A.    Yes.



               6        Q.    Please proceed.



               7        A.    The Office participated in discussions and



               8  negotiations with the other parties that led to the



               9  stipulation.



              10              There are specific conditions on the



              11  stipulation that the Office believes are important to the



              12  public interest.



              13              Customers receive the benefit on the 2018



              14  amortization of plant-related excess deferred income taxes,



              15  or EDIT, promptly through a surcredit on their bills.



              16              Also, the appropriate treatment of the



              17  nonplant-related EDIT and the remaining nonprotected



              18  plant-related EDIT will be addressed in the next rate case



              19  where the Office and other parties will be able to fully



              20  evaluate all aspects of DEU's revenue requirements.



              21              By moving this determination to the rate case,



              22  parties will be able to evaluate various options for the



              23  best use of the funds, such as the appropriate time frame



              24  over which to return the EDIT to customers as quickly as



              25  possible without negatively impacting DEU's financial
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               1  position or credit rating, or perhaps offsetting a



               2  regulatory asset owed from customers.



               3              Thus, the Office believes that the stipulation



               4  is just and reasonable and result and is in the public



               5  interest.  And we recommend that the Commission approve it.



               6        Q.    Does this conclude your testimony?



               7        A.    Yes.



               8              MR. MOORE:  Ms. Murray is available for cross



               9  and questions from the presiding officer.



              10              HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Ms. Spencer?



              11              MS. SPENCER:  No questions.  Thank you.



              12              HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Jetter?



              13              MR. JETTER:  I have no questions.  Thank you.



              14              HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Is there anything



              15  else before we adjourn?  All right.  Have a good day



              16  everybody.



              17              (The hearing concluded at 10:15 a.m.)



              18
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